Public Document Pack

CABINET AGENDA
Tuesday, 24 May 2022 at 10.00 am in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item
Business
1

Apologies for absence

2

Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)
Cabinet is asked to approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting held on
26 April 2022.

Key Decision
3

Household Support Fund (Pages 9 - 26)
Report of the Strategic Director, Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities

4

Local Transport Plan: Capital Programme Year End Report (May 2022)
(Pages 27 - 46)
Report of the Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation and Growth

Non Key Decisions
5

Appointments to Advisory Groups, Other Bodies of the Council, Joint
Committees and Outside Bodies (Pages 47 - 62)
Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance

6

Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme (RSAP) Funding 2022-25
(Pages 63 - 68)
Report of the Strategic Director, Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities

7

Nomination of Local Authority School Governors (Pages 69 - 72)
Report of the Chief Executive

8

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The Cabinet may wish to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the following items on the grounds indicated:
Item

Paragraph of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972

9

1

Recommendations to Council
9

Addressing Low Pay within the Workforce (Pages 73 - 90)
Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance

Contact: Kevin Ingledew Email: keviningledew@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 4332142,
Date: Monday, 16 May 2022

Agenda Item 2
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET MEETING
Tuesday, 26 April 2022

PRESENT:

Councillor M Gannon
Councillors: C Donovan, J Adams, M Brain, A Douglas,
G Haley, J McElroy, M McNestry and B Oliphant
Also in attendance: Councillors R Beadle and JC Wallace

C174

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor L Green.

C175

MINUTES
The minutes of the last meeting held on 22 March 2022 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

C176

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ENERGY REBATE
Consideration has been given to the implementation of the Energy Rebate and to the
proposed approach for the use of the discretionary element of the scheme.
The alternative option to that being recommended, but which was discounted, included
extending the mandatory scheme to include band E households.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the arrangements for the implementation of the Energy
Rebate Scheme be noted and endorsed.

(ii)

That the proposals for the discretionary element of the Scheme
as set out in the report and below be approved:



An additional ‘top up’ payment of £20 to all residents in
bands A to D who are in receipt of Council Tax Support,
meaning they will have received £170 in total.
A payment of £170 to all residents in bands E – H
(currently 84 cases) who are also in receipt of Local
Council Tax Support.

Any residual funding to be used as follows:


Payments to be made to new occupiers of a property in
band A – D who moved in after the 1 April 2022
qualifying date and who haven’t already received a

Page 3



(iii)

payment at another address.
Payments to be made to newly qualifying households
following a property band change received after 1 April
2022 (e.g., where a band reduces from E to D).

That the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital be given
delegated authority to administer the fund in line with
government guidance.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:

C177

(A)

To ensure allocated funds are maximised for the benefit of
those households most likely to be suffering hardship as a
result of the rising cost of living.

(B)

To administer the funds in compliance with government
guidance.

REDUCING THE NUMBER OF CHILDREN REQUIRING CARE
Consideration has been given to recommending the Council to approve the new
Reducing the Number of Children Requiring Care Strategy.
RESOLVED -

That the Council be recommended to approve the Reducing
the Number of Children Requiring Care Strategy for adoption
as part of the Council’s Policy Framework.

The above decision has been made for the following reasons:
(A)

This strategy supports the strategic priorities of Children
Social Care and Early Help to reduce the number of children
who need our care.

(B)

To achieve the vision and aims of the Health and Wellbeing
strategy, in particular, giving every child the best start in life
and enabling all our children and young people to achieve
their best outcomes.

(C)

The approach to Social Work, Gateshead CAN, is central to
this strategy as Social Work is one of our greatest assets in
achieving a reduction in the numbers of children coming into
care and leaving care.

(D)

The approach to Social Work practice is not limited to one
model or ‘way to do it’. Gateshead CAN is an overarching
systemic and strengths-based approach, which recognises
the interrelationships between Context, Action and Narrative
(CAN).

Page 4

C178

GATESHEAD LOCAL PLAN - PLACEMAKING SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING
DOCUMENT (SPD) AND SPECIALIST AND SUPPORTED HOUSING
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD)
Consideration has been given to recommending the Council to approve and adopt the
Placemaking Supplementary Planning Document and Specialist and Supported Housing
Supplementary Planning Document.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the Council be recommended to approve and adopt the
Placemaking Supplementary Planning Document as set out in
appendix 2 to the report.

(ii)

That the Council be recommended to approve and adopt the
Specialist and Supported Housing Supplementary Planning
Document as set out in appendix 3 to the report.

(iii)

That the publication of a Consultation Report for each of the
Supplementary Planning Documents be approved.

(iv)

That it be noted the rationale for determining Areas of Special
Interest and their boundaries included within the Placemaking
Supplementary Planning Document, will be explained to ward
councillors.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:

C179

(A)

To enable the Council to effectively deliver the Local Plan.

(B)

To ensure full public engagement on the Placemaking
Supplementary Planning Document in line with Gateshead’s
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI).

WORKFORCE STRATEGY 2022 TO 2025
Consideration has been given to a refreshed Council Workforce Strategy and the
priorities for 2022/23.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the refreshed Council Workforce Strategy as set out in
appendix 2 to the report be approved.

(ii)

That the priorities for 2022/23 as set out in the report be
endorsed.

The above decisions have been made to ensure the Council has an agreed Workforce
Strategy which supports the Council’s priorities.

C180

CHANGING FUTURES NORTHUMBRIA
Consideration has been given to the governance arrangements for the Changing Futures
Northumbria programme to ensure that the delivery plan can be implemented.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the partnership agreement and governance arrangements

Page 5

detailed within the report to administer the programme funding
in line with government guidance be approved.
(ii)

That the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance be given delegated authority to agree a
partnership agreement with participating local authorities.

The above decisions have been made to administer the funds in compliance with
government guidance.

C181

DOMESTIC ABUSE SAFE ACCOMMODATION FUNDING – HOME GROUP
ALLOCATION
Consideration has been given to a decision taken under delegated powers, to allocate
domestic abuse safe accommodation funding to Home Group, within the financial year
2021/22.
RESOLVED -

That the decision taken by the Service Director, Strategic
Housing and Residential Growth to award £39,500.00 domestic
abuse safe accommodation funding to Home Group, in
accordance with Schedule 5, Part 2 General Delegations to
Managers, Paragraph (4) (e) of the Council’s Constitution be
noted.

The above decision has been taken to ensure allocation of the Domestic Abuse Safe
Accommodation Funding was allocated by the end of March 2022, as per grant
requirements and delivered to best meet the safe accommodation needs of victims of
domestic abuse in Gateshead.

C182

SCHOOL TERM DATES 2023/2024
Consideration has been given to the proposed school term dates for 2023/24.
RESOLVED -

That the proposed school term dates for 2023/24 as set out in
appendix 2 to the report be approved.

The above decision has been made for the following reasons:

C183

(A)

To allow future planning to take place.

(B)

To make effective and efficient use of resources.

COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES - TRANSFER OF
UNCOLLECTABLE AMOUNTS
Consideration has been given to the transfer of outstanding balances from Council Tax
and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) accounts, where all possible recovery action has been
taken and the balances are now considered to be uncollectable.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the transfer of 1,163 uncollectable accounts in respect of

Page 6

Council Tax balances totalling £581,130.26 be approved.
(ii)

That the transfer of 51 uncollectable accounts of Non-Domestic
Rates balances totalling £432,089.43 be approved.

(iii)

That the action taken under delegated powers to transfer
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates accounts with balances
of £500 or less as set out in the report be noted.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:

C184

(A)

To ensure the effective management of the Council’s
resources.

(B)

To ensure that the Council Accounts accurately reflect the
correct financial position.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED -

C185

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the remaining business in accordance with
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

GATESHEAD QUAYS UPDATE
Consideration has been given to the progression of the Gateshead Quays enabling
works.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the completion of the site-specific enabling works, with a
revised value of the amount set out in the report be approved.

(ii)

That the progression of the technical design works by Ask Real
Estate and Patrizia UK at an estimated cost of the amount set
out in the report be approved.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:
(A)

To bring forward the regeneration of Gateshead Quays, which
supports the Council’s aspiration of making Gateshead a place
where everyone thrives.

(B)

To reaffirm the commitment to invest in the local economy to
provide sustainable opportunities for employment, innovation
and growth across the borough.

(C)

To maintain momentum on the scheme, signal confidence in
the local economy which is important as part of the delivery of
the Economic Development Strategy.

Page 7

C186

DEVELOPMENT OF NEW HOMES IN SALTWELL AND HIGH SPEN BY THE
GATESHEAD REGENERATION PARTNERSHIP
Consideration has been given to the freehold transfer of Hyde Park in Saltwell and the
former Hookergate School in High Spen to the Gateshead Regeneration Limited Liability
Partnership (GRP), to enable the development of 106 homes.
RESOLVED -

That the transfer of the freehold interest in the Hyde Park and
Hookergate sites as shown in the plans attached to the report,
with an aggregate transfer value of the amount set out in the
report, in accordance with the Agreement for Sale to the GRP,
for the provision of new homes be approved.

The above decision has been made for the following reasons:
(A)

To support the delivery of 58 affordable homes in Saltwell,
provide family homes to meet the housing needs of the Jewish
community, secure Homes England funding being invested in
the borough.

(B)

To achieve and complete the regeneration objectives set out
by the Council, its partners and the community in 2005 for the
Bensham and Saltwell area.

(C)

To make best use of a surplus asset and enable new family
homes in Winlaton and High Spen ward.

(D)

To enable income to accrue to the Council and training,
employment and socio-economic benefits for the residents and
businesses of Gateshead.

(E)

To bring forward a vacant Council owned site for
redevelopment and remove holding costs to the Council.

(F)

To utilise the Council’s land and property portfolio to support
the Council’s policy priorities in accordance with the provisions
of the Council’s Corporate Asset Strategy and Management
Plan and Housing Strategy 2019-30.

Copies of all reports and appendices referred to in these minutes are available online
and in the minute file. Please note access restrictions apply for exempt business as
defined by the Access to Information Act.
The decisions referred to in these minutes will come into force and be implemented after
the expiry of 3 working days after the publication date of the minutes identified below
unless the matters are ‘called in’.
Publication date: 28 April 2022
Chair……….………………..

Page 8

Agenda Item 3
REPORT TO CABINET
24 May 2022
TITLE OF REPORT:

Household Support Fund

REPORT OF:

Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Housing,
Environment and Healthy Communities

Purpose of the Report
1.

To seek Cabinet’s approval of the Council’s proposal for the distribution of the
Household Support Fund for the period 1st April 2022 to 30th September 2022

Background
2.

The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) Household Support Fund has been
extended until 30th September 2022, providing £1.837m. Whilst the spirit of the
fund remains the same, namely, to support those at risk of going cold or hungry
there are some fundamental changes to the beneficiaries, which now includes one
third to be spent on older people, one third on children, and one third other, which
equates to c£582,000 after estimated administration costs of 5%. There is also
greater emphasis on energy, although there is still discretion to support with other
essentials such as food, water rates, broadband, council tax, household essentials
(for example warm bedding, clothing, shoes) and in exceptional cases where all
other avenues have been explored, housing costs.

Proposal
(Minimum) One third allocation to Children
3.

It is proposed Gateshead continues to support children through the free school
meals provision. This will require the Council to spend more than the third
allocated for children, spending £756,000 to cover the May and Summer holiday
but this proposal recognises these are low-income households, with a household
income of less than £7,400.

4.

Further, the proposal is to target through direct referrals and with the help of
professionals in social care, early help, councillors and health visitors, pre-school
children and young people who do not fall within the free school meal target group,
with a spend of £50 per child as follows:






Young parents, estimated to include 150 children - £7,500
Families with disabled children and young adults, estimated to include 228
children = £11,400
Care Leavers, estimated to include 224 young people = £11,200
Referrals made through Family Support Workers operating in schools, estimated
to be 100 children = £5,000
Referrals made through health visitors, estimated to be 100 children = £5,000

Page 9
1 of 17

5.

In addition, it is proposed the Council makes a grant to the Jewish Community
Council of Gateshead of £30,000 to support children in Jewish schools who we
know do not access free school meals.

(Minimum) One third allocation to Older People
6.

It is proposed the Council uses data from Revenues and Benefits which tells us we
have 8,500 older people in receipt of Council Tax Support, and from this number
approximately 5,000 are in council housing and in receipt of full or partial housing
benefit. After a data cleanse to identify duplicates between the two data sets, we
propose to provide a single payment grant of £50 per household which equates to
£425,000.

7.

Further, it is proposed we set aside a sum of money to target those who are “just
coping” and who may not be visible to us in our data sets. We will do this by direct
referrals and with the help of social care, councillors, Age UK Gateshead, Older
People’s Assembly, Citizens Advice Gateshead, and others.

Remaining spend on “Other”
8.

This leaves us with approximately £394,000 for other uses, and from this £394,000
it is proposed the Council supports:


The creation of a small grant programme of £50k to support agencies to create
warm spaces where people can go to keep warm, receive a hot drink and
company. We’re exploring how we link this up with CCG funding to support
VCSE agencies with utility costs.



Energy workshops across the Borough using existing resources provided by
partners involved in energy advice and energy efficiency. To support these
roadshows the Council will procure up to £25k:
o energy efficiency items like LED light bulbs, draft excluders
o “Heat the person” items building on the Martin Lewis guidance
https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/heat-the-human-not-thehome-save-energy/
o Warm bedding
o Microwaves, slow cookers, and recipe cards to aid low-cost cooking

This leaves £319,000 for discretionary spend.
Discretionary spend
9.

Further, we know there will be people across the Borough of all demographics at
risk of going cold or hungry who are not in receipt of Council Tax Support, Housing
Benefit, or free school meals who may yet be invisible to us, residents who are just
coping and at risk of vulnerability. We therefore propose targeting the remaining
money (£319,000) to reach these people through a collaboration with:

Page 10
2 of 17











Housing Team
Private Landlords Team
Age UK
Citizens Advice Gateshead
Older People’s Assembly
Libraries
Social Care
Revenues and Benefits
Councillors and others

Recommendations
10.

It is recommended that Cabinet supports the proposals to support:
(i)
(ii)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

low income families identified through free school meals and by direct
referrals from professional partners;
make a grant to the Jewish Community Council, recognising the Jewish
community does not access free school meal provision;
older people identified through Council Tax Support, Housing Benefit and by
direct referrals professional partners;
create a Warm Space Network and Energy Road Shows; and
claim a 5% administration fee from which 2 FTE Grade D posts will be
recruited to support the referral process.

For the following reasons:
(i)
(ii)

Targeting the groups identified will meet our Thrive policy objectives.
Creating the Warm Space Network and supporting the Energy Roadshows
will provide a legacy beyond the Household Support Fund.

CONTACT: Alison Dunn

Ext 2710

Page 11
3 of 17

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context

1.

Gateshead residents like many throughout the United Kingdom, are experiencing
significant cost of living rises, to include increases in fuel, interest rates and
escalating energy costs.

2.

The driver for this work is the Thrive Policy Framework, in particular: 



3.

Put people and families at the heart of everything we do
Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance
Support our communities to support themselves and each other

These proposals have regard to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Gateshead
and the principle of targeting those in greatest need.
Background

4.

The DWP Household Support Fund has been extended until 30th September 2022,
providing £1.837m. Whilst the spirit of the fund remains the same, namely, to
support those at risk of going cold or hungry, there are some fundamental changes
to the beneficiaries, which now include one third to be spent on older people, one
third on children, and one third other, which equates to c£582,000 after estimated
administration costs of 5%. There is also greater emphasis on energy, although
there is still discretion to support with other essentials such as food, water rates,
broadband, council tax, household essentials (for example warm bedding, clothing,
shoes) and in exceptional cases where all other avenues have been explored,
housing costs.
What’s different this time?

5.

The focus on older people (pension age) is a new target group.

6.

Whilst we are proposing to continue with supermarket vouchers for free school
meals, for others the proposal is to use a different method of payment through
organisations working with the Post Office who can organise a cash payment.
Whilst this new method of payment would need to be set up, we can use the
experience of the Energy Rebate initiative system to speed up the establishment of
the system. Our assessment of the various payment options can be found at
Appendix 2.

7.

Previously our approach has been very light touch, but as we come out of Covid the
proposal is to better support officers with decision making upon allocating this
money, and in all referrals made to the fund by third parties. It is proposed that the
relevant parts of the Council’s Local Discretionary Grants Fund policy as well as
guidance from DWP is used to strengthen the process. Some parts of the policy
are not relevant for example in relation to restrictions around supporting people
without recourse to public funds. These restrictions are not applicable to the DWP

Page 12
4 of 17

Household Support Fund. The proposed Local Discretionary Grants Fund policy
can be found at Appendix 3.
8.

Further, in the past we relied on council staff in the Community Hubs, in Revenue
and Benefits and VCSE partners to administer the fund without any additional
resource but this is no longer sustainable. Staff are no longer present in
Community Hubs, Revenues and Benefit staff are administering several other
schemes simultaneously e.g. the Energy Rebate scheme and have no further
capacity, and VCSE partners reported immeasurable pressure on their core
business in the last round of funding. Therefore, on this occasion we propose
resourcing 2 FTE from the Fund, Grade D posts, for 6 months at a cost of £25,317
to be a central point of contact and to administer all direct referrals from third
parties. The small team will be managed within the Benefits Service.

9.

The fund allows for reasonable administrative costs, and the guidance suggests a
fee of 5% will be considered reasonable (£0.092m). Approaching the referrals and
payments this way will provide a more streamlined process and it will help us to
avoid duplication, something which in previous rounds of funding has been difficult
to sustain without additional resource.

Summary of spend on Children
Free school meals
Young parents
Disabled children
Care leavers
Referrals by schools and health visitors
Jewish Community Council of
Gateshead
Total

£756,000
£7,500
£11,400
£11,200
£10,000
£30,000
£826,100

Summary of spend on Older People
Older people in receipt of Council Tax
Support
Budget for targeting those who are just
coping in the older people category

£595,000
£100,000
£525,000

Remaining spend on “Other”
This leaves us with approximately £394,000 for other uses, calculated as follows:
Grant Allocation
Admin Allocation (5%)
Grant to be allocated to households
Households with Family
Households with Older People
Remaining to be allocated

£1.837m
(£0.092m
£1.745m
(£0.826m)
(£0.525m)
£0.394m

Page 13
5 of 17

10.

Consultation
Cabinet members have been consulted on the proposals.
Alternative Options

11.

In previous rounds we have relied more heavily, although not exclusively, on VCSE
partners to distribute the funds on our behalf, but the demand for service placed an
intolerable pressure on VCSE agencies and visibility of potential duplication was
much restricted. If we were to take this approach again, we would need to resource
the VCSE agencies – on previous occasions they worked within their existing
resources. However, in smaller agencies it is likely recruitment to short term
employment opportunities may be problematic in the current job market, whereas
the Council is more likely to be able to resource the work from its much bigger
workforce.

12.

There are many ways this money could be distributed, but we have used our
learning from previous rounds to formulate these proposals. Further, enquiries with
neighbouring authorities and our participation in national networking calls suggest
our approach is similar to others.
Implications of Recommended Option

13.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms that all grant money must be spent, not just allocated, by the end of
September. Any underspend must be returned to national government, there
is no provision for roll over to future programme activity.

b)

Human Resources Implications – 2 FTE Grade D employees will need to
be identified and deployed to support this work.

c)

Property Implications - None identified.

14.

Risk Management Implication - Monitoring of spend is essential to ensure all
funds are distributed in a timely fashion to Gateshead residents. Any under-spend
needs to be returned to national government.

15.

Equality and Diversity Implications 7% of EdenRed food vouchers distributed to free school meal households remain
unclaimed. We are working with Services for Schools and the Early Help Team to
understand why this may be the case, if it’s linked to their socio-economic status,
and what support they might need from us to access these funds.
Further, using our network of partners and professional advisers within the Council,
the intention is to identify people who may be vulnerable or just coping using a
direct referral system. However, there will be people within these groups who may
not be visible to us.

Page 14
6 of 17

16.

Crime and Disorder Implications – None identified

17.

Health Implications – There are health implications for a vulnerable person living
in a cold home, it increases their chance of serious illness or death. They are at
higher risk of a heart attack or stroke, breathing problems, flu, depression and falls1.
Further, research has found that food insecurity is associated with increased risk of
some birth defects, anaemia, lower nutrient intakes, cognitive problems, and
aggression and anxiety2.

18.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - 9 in 10 households rely on
gas boilers and lots of gas boilers need lots of gas; UK households consume more
of it than almost all their European peers, at around twice the EU average. Gas
burned in households now equates to half of all imports – that is why any spike in
gas prices immediately translates into higher heating bills for the UK.
Adequately insulating homes is a key component of managing energy prices. And
yet, the charity National Energy Action has noted that between 2012 and 2019 the
number of home insulation installations dropped by 95%, and at current rates it
would take nearly a century to properly insulate all the current fuel-poor homes in
the country.

19.

Human Rights Implications - None identified

20.

Ward Implications - None identified

1

National Institute for Health and Care Excellence, Helping to Prevent Winter Deaths and Illnesses
Associated with Cold Homes
2
Health Affairs, Food Insecurity and Health Outcomes

Page 15
7 of 17

APPENDIX 2
Food Method of Payment
Method of
payment

Preloaded
payment
cards

Supermarket
E-vouchers

Gift card

On-line
shopping
facilitated
by
Council

Does it
eliminate or
reduce Stigma?
Resident digital
skills needed to
implement?
Does the
payment
method give
choice of
location/store?
Does the
payment
method allow
multiple shops?
Provides choice
of goods
purchased?
Alcohol or
cigarettes
prohibited.
Could partners
administer?
Value can be
flexible?
Advance
purchase/cost
for council?
Easily
distributed in
large numbers?
Secure storage
required?

Page 16
8 of 17

BACS
payment

Post
Office
Pay Out
Scheme

Cash

APPENDIX 3

Gateshead Council
Household Support Fund Scheme
April – September 2022

May 2022

Page 17
9 of 17

Contents
Section

Page

1. Purpose

3

2. Considerations for an Award

3

3. Claiming an Award

4

4. Awards

7

5. The right to seek a review

7

6. Monitoring / Audit of the Scheme

8

7. Fraud

8

8. Other forms of support

9

9. Communications

9

Page 18
10 of 17

Household Support Fund Scheme
1.

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this document is to outline how Gateshead Council will:
Operate the Household Support Fund scheme 2022
Criteria used to decide an individual award
Criteria used to decide on automatic awards
How an award might be made
Further assistance offered
Exclusions








1.2

Each case will be treated on its own merits within the scope of this guidance. All applicants
will receive equal and fair treatment to take account of the Council’s responsibilities under
all relevant legislation, for example the Human Rights Act 1998 and The Equality Act 2010.

1.2

Gateshead Council is committed to working with the local community and voluntary sector,
and other interested parties to facilitate this scheme.

2.

Considerations for an Award

2.1

Gateshead Council will consider making an award to applicants who meet the eligibility
criteria specified in this document. The operation of the scheme is at the Council’s
discretion and applicants do not have an automatic right to an award. Awards will only be
made where sufficient financial resources are available within the Council throughout the
duration of the Scheme.

2.1.2





As a general principle, awards will not be made when a need arises owing to:
lost or stolen money (with or without a crime number)
cash advances for benefit payments
benefit spent and
lost income through benefit sanctions or disallowances.

2.1.3

This scheme is not intended to replicate or take over the responsibility of statutory agencies
nor is it intended to replicate the previous provisions provided for by Department for Work
and Pensions (DWP) to 31/3/13.

2.1.4

Applicants may be restricted to one award from the scheme.

2.1.5

The fund is intended to support households with significantly rising living costs and to
support those struggling with energy bills, food, water bills and other essential costs related
to those items and with wider essential costs, including housing costs where existing
schemes do not meet the exceptional need.

2.2

What exceptional needs might be met from the fund?

2.2.1

The following are needs which could be met from the fund (this list is not exhaustive):
Food
Utilities/energy
Exceptional Housing costs (not met from elsewhere) not mortgage costs

Page 19
11 of 17

Essentials linked to energy and water – for example warm clothing, energy efficient cooking
facilities
Wider essentials – for example bills including broadband, phone, clothing, transport related
costs.
2.2.2

An award from the Household Support Fund is not intended to satisfy or meet every need
which results from a household crisis situation.

2.2.4

What cannot be covered from this fund:
 Lost, stolen money
 Problems accessing capital that is not realisable
 Ongoing Housing support due to an unsustainable tenancy
 Mortgage Support

2.2.5

The Council will also take into account whether the urgent need:
 can be met by other sources of help or the possibility that some other person or body
may wholly or partly meet the need;
 would not abate without immediate support;
 is the consequence of an act or omission for which the applicant or partner is
responsible; and the applicant or partner could have taken reasonable steps to avoid.

2.2.7

Unless there are exceptional circumstances, applications from single people living with
family members will not be awarded help under the scheme.

3.

Claiming an Award

3.1

Core Eligibility Criteria
The core eligibility criteria of the scheme has been set by Government.
The funding must be distributed 1/3 to pensioners, 1/3 to families with children and 1/3 to
other households in need.
It is for each Local Authority to decide how best to distribute the funds and Members have
decided on a mechanism to support households within that statutory framework and within
the timescales available for the funding to be distributed.
The majority of the funding will be distributed automatically to those households identified
as most in need. There will also be a referral process to the council through collaboration
with other services and organisations to consider an award to other households.

3.2
3.2.1

Automatic Awards
The following households will automatically receive an award from the fund:
 Households in receipt of Free School meals
 Young parents
 Families with disabled children and young adults
 Care leavers
 Households identified by Family support workers or Health Visitors
 Families with Children in the Jewish Community where identified in need.
 Pension Age Households in receipt of Council Tax Support

Page 20
12 of 17

3.3

Awards by Referral

3.3.1

A household in need of support not otherwise identified or provided with any award as
above, can be referred from another service or partner organisation to the Council for
support under this scheme.

3.3.2

A referral for support must be accompanied by the applicants express permission to allow
the Council to check and consider other relevant sources of information held by the council
on their financial circumstances or whether an award has already been made.

3.3.3

A referral for support should provide information as to the immediate need and type of
support required and any evidence to support the application (for example bank
statements, letter from energy provider etc).

3.3.4

Referrals will be taken through collaboration with the following:












Housing Team
Private Landlords Team
Age UK
Citizens Advice Gateshead
Older Peoples Assembly
Libraries
Social Care
Health Visitors
Family Support Workers (in schools)
Revenues and Benefits
Councillors and others

3.3.5

An award may not be made under this part where an award has already been made.

3.3.6

No award will be made where there are no remaining funds within the scheme or where an
application has been made after 30 September 2022.

3.4

How to Apply

3.4.1

There is no direct application process to the council for an award.

3.4.2

There is no application process for automatic awards identified above.

3.4.3

Referrals are via contact with one of the agencies/services listed above.

3.4.4

All applications will be processed by the Local Discretionary Payments Team, Customer
and Digital, Regent Street, Gateshead. NE8 1HH between the hours of 9.00am – 4.30pm,
Monday to Thursday and 9.00am – 3.00pm Friday. The Council do not guarantee that a
decision will be made, or an award made, on the day an application is submitted, and all
applications will be dealt with as soon as is reasonably practicable.

3.4.6. In the case of an emergency check the Council website www.gateshead.gov.uk or try one
of the following:
 If a child is at risk of abuse, harm or neglect, please contact the out of hours
Emergency Duty team on (0191) 433 7033 on or contact the Police by telephoning
999;

Page 21
13 of 17






If an adult is at risk of abuse, harm or danger to themselves or others, please
contact the out of hours Adult Social Care Direct on (0191) 433 7033 or contact the
Police by telephoning 999;
For non-emergency Police matters telephone 101
If you are homeless or think that you are at risk of becoming homeless call
Gateshead Housing Options Team on 0800 923 995 or 0191 433 3174
If you are a tenant of the Gateshead Housing Company and need to report
emergency repairs or housing problems, please telephone the Home Repairs
service on 0800 408 6008.

3.4.7

The date of application is the date the Local Discretionary Payments Team receives a
completed referral, provided the referral is in the correct form, is fully completed with
supporting documentation and is acceptable as sufficient in the circumstances of the case.

3.4.8

Applicants are advised to wait until they are contacted by an assessor before making
further enquiries.

3.5

Decision Making

3.5.1

The Council intends to make ‘light touch’ decisions when deciding on an award. Awards will
usually be of a fixed sum amount as the funding stream for such awards is limited.

3.5.2

Abuse of the system will not be tolerated and action will be taken on any fraudulent
applications.

3.5.3

We may seek to contact the applicant for further information and/or a number of information
gathering processes may be carried out by an assessor to reach a decision. This may
include telephone or email contact to:





3.5.4

verify information provided;
clarify details of the need;
review the factors that have triggered or maintained an urgent need;
discuss other types of support that may be appropriate.

On reviewing the applicant’s circumstances, case details and eligibility, an assessor may
reject an application on the basis that:


There is insufficient funding available to provide an award on that occasion.



The application was received after 30 September 2022 (the end date for the scheme)



The need identified is not one that can be met from the scheme funding.



The applicant has already received an award from the fund.



There is insufficient information to verify eligibility to an award.



The referral is deemed to be fraudulent [see section 7]
The operation of the scheme is at the Council’s discretion and applicants do not have
an automatic right to an award.

3.5.5

Gateshead Council reserves the right to reject applications at any stage of the process.

Page 22
14 of 17

4

Awards

4.1

Method of Award

4.1.1

An award may be in the form of:
 Direct supply of goods
 A pre-paid card, which the applicant can use to purchase the agreed
items/goods/service.
 A voucher for food at local outlets
 Payment via the Post Office
 Payment direct to your nominated bank account
 Any other method deemed suitable by Gateshead Council to satisfy the need applied
for.
The Council are unable to supply cash direct to applicants.

4.1.2

Depending on the applicants’ circumstances, awards may be made to:
 The applicant
 Their partner or immediate family member acting as an appointee
 An advocate service or statutory authority acting on behalf of applicant.

4.1.3

Arrangements through third parties may be helpful where the applicant has an illness or
disability that impairs their ability to make a transaction or receive a delivery for the agreed
item.

4.1.4

The Council’s terms and conditions for the Household Support Scheme awards will apply.

4.2

Notification

4.2.1

Applicants will be notified of their decision either in writing (usually via email) or via
telephone (and followed up by email). The notification will include the following information:
 How the award will be made
 Any other options for support available to the applicant

5

The right to seek a Review

5.1

Reviews
A Review of any decision can be requested using the procedure below:

5.1.1

An applicant (or their appointee or agent) who disagrees with a decision may request a
right to seek a review. An applicant can ask for a review if they can:
 Demonstrate there has been a factual error in the decision made,
 There has been an oversight on a significant piece of evidence or
 New evidence has come to light which was not provided with the original
application.
In these circumstances, the applicant must provide the relevant details. Such review
requests must be made in writing within one calendar month to:
Local Discretionary Payments Team, Gateshead Council, Resources and Digital, Civic
Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead. NE8 1HH or by email to LWA@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 23
15 of 17

5.1.2

The decision will be reviewed by a senior officer who is independent of the initial decision
and a decision made within one calendar month of the request for a review being made, or
as soon as is reasonably practicable.

5.1.3

There is no right to seek a review where the decision not to award was based on lack of
available funds by which to make an award.

5.1.4

There shall be no right to a review where the application is to meet a need not covered
under the scheme.

5.1.5

There is no right to a review where the refusal is because another award has already been
made

5.1.6

The outcome of a review shall be final and there shall be no further right to request a review
or appeal against a decision.

6

Monitoring / Audit of the Scheme

6.1

To ensure transparency and consistency, the Council will monitor applications, items of
spend and need and general cases. Such monitoring will be undertaken with due regard to
the Council’s responsibilities under all relevant legislation. The Council is subject to the
general equality duty. This means that steps will be taken to monitor implementation of this
policy to ensure no one is subject to disproportionate adverse treatment because they had
a protected characteristic. The general equality duty requires that when making a decision
under the scheme, the Council has due regard to the need to:



7

Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic specified in the Equality Act and other relevant legislation.
Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share relevant protected characteristic that
are different from the needs of persons who do not share it.

Fraud
Gateshead Council is committed to the fight against fraud in all its forms. An applicant who
tries to fraudulently claim an award by falsely declaring their circumstances, providing a
false statement or false evidence in support of their application, may have committed an
offence under the Fraud Act 2006. Where it is alleged, or the authority suspects that such a
fraud may have been committed, the matter will be investigated and if fraud is found to
have occurred, action will be taken including, if appropriate, criminal proceedings.

8

Other forms of Support

8.1

While we cannot guarantee an award will be made in all circumstances, we will signpost
applicants to other relevant sources of information, advice and guidance. This is because
we have a duty of care to ensure people in crisis can get access to support that will
safeguard against risks to their health and safety.

8.2

This support could include but is not limited to:
 Help to maximise income e.g. benefit and entitlement checks
 Access to help on dealing with money worries and debt
 Employment Support – access to support to help you to find job opportunities, calculate
the benefits of being in employment, submit job application forms and prepare for
interviews.

Page 24
16 of 17

8.3

The relationship between the applicant and the Council will be underpinned by our core
values of open, honest, approachable and keeping our promises.

8.4

All personal information disclosed by the applicant will be treated with the strictest
confidentiality in accordance with the Data Protection Act and the General Data Protection
Regulations.

9

Communications

9.1

The scheme will be publicised on the Council’s website and the Council will ensure that key
local agencies, front line staff, community and voluntary sector organisations are aware of
how the scheme works.

9.2

All written correspondence should be sent to:
Local Discretionary Payments Team, Gateshead Council, Resources and Digital, Civic
Centre, Regent Street, Gateshead. NE8 1HH
Or
LWA@Gateshead.gov.uk

Page 25
17 of 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
REPORT TO CABINET
24th May 2022

TITLE OF REPORT:

Local Transport Plan: Capital Programme Year End
Report (May 2022)

REPORT OF:

Peter Udall, Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation
and Growth

Purpose of the Report
1.

This report is an update on the Local Transport Plan (LTP) Capital
Programme. It provides a summary of the progress that has been made in
the 2021/22 financial year, as well as confirming programmes for integrated
transport and maintenance schemes scheduled for 2022/23.

Background
2.

LTP funding is allocated by government and provides a source of funding for
integrated transport schemes and maintenance of highways and structures. It
is supplemented wherever possible by external sources such as developer
contributions and bids for government funding, and by prudential borrowing.

3.

Integrated transport improvements cover a range of works including bus
priority, new and improved cycleways, better and safer environments for
pedestrians, traffic calming and road safety improvements. Maintenance
funding covers road maintenance works as well as maintenance of structures
relating to the highway such as bridges.

4.

Indicative programmes for the current financial year were approved by
Cabinet in December 2021. Although the financial year 2020/21 was the final
year of the LTP3 funding allocations, this was subsequently extended into
2021/22 and again into 2022/23.

5.

In 2022/23, a similar amount of integrated transport funding has been
received by the region; Gateshead’s share of this is likely to remain similar to
last year. For maintenance funding in 2022/23, the same amount of funding
will be received as the previous year for the Needs and Pothole allocations.
The amount of Incentive funding received may be slightly higher than
previous years, but this element is yet to be confirmed.

Page 27

6.

The indicative programme for 2022/23 also includes the construction of a
number of schemes to be funded via the Government’s Transforming Cities
Fund (TCF). Business case production for four of the proposals is ongoing,
while one of the schemes (GA08 Gateshead Quays) has now been approved
for grant funding at full business case stage and has commenced. A
regionwide TCF scheme to improve the operation of traffic signals along the
major bus corridors will also be implemented this year. Implementation of
Gateshead’s Active Travel Fund scheme is currently underway.

Proposal
7.

The transport capital programme is managed flexibly and includes an
element of overprogramming to ensure that the LTP grant and other funding
sources are fully utilised. Some changes to the programme have occurred
throughout the year, particularly in terms of slippage of schemes. These
changes have been set out in Appendix 1 and in more detail in the appended
programmes.

Recommendations
8.

It is recommended that Cabinet:
(i)

(ii)

(ii)

approves the proposed programme for 2022/23 as set out in
Appendices D and E, noting that there may be a need to review these
as the year progresses in line with available resources;
authorises the Service Director, Highways and Waste, to award the
relevant works under the terms of the Highways, Drainage and Street
Lighting Maintenance Contract; and
authorises the Service Director, Climate Change, Compliance,
Planning and Transport to make changes to the approved
programme, following consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Environment and Transport, as and when the need arises.

For the following reason:
To enable the design and implementation of transport schemes in support of
the North East Transport Plan and the Council’s policy objectives.

CONTACT: Anneliese Hutchinson extension: 3881

Page 28

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1. The programmes support the pledges within the Council’s Thrive agenda. They
also support the Core Strategy and Urban Core Plan, the aims and objectives of
the North East Transport Plan, the Gateshead Highway Asset Management Plan,
and the Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The programmes will be
aligned with the Council’s initiatives to tackle the climate emergency.
Furthermore, the indicative programme utilises funding received through specific
government grants as well as the proposed use of Council resources.
Background
2. LTP funding is allocated by government and provides a source of funding for
integrated transport schemes and maintenance of highways and structures. The
integrated transport funding comes via the North East Combined Authority and
covers a range of works including bus priority, new and improved cycleways,
better pedestrian facilities and road safety improvements. Investment in highways
infrastructure is guided by the principles set out in the Highways Asset
Management Plan.
3. LTP funding is supplemented where appropriate by prudential borrowing or
external funding sources including developer contributions and other capital
grants. A breakdown of the funding that was used in the financial year 2021/22 by
funding source can be found at Appendix C. A similar breakdown showing
expected funding sources for the current financial year 2022/23 can be found at
Appendix F.
4. The financial year 2020/21 was the final year of the LTP3 funding allocations,
however this was subsequently extended by the Department for Transport into
2021/22 and then into 2022/23 for funding consistency. For integrated transport,
the funding to be received from Government in 2022/23 is likely to be similar to
the previous year (£1.197m with an additional £35.7k public transport grant). For
maintenance funding the position is more complicated, with funding coming
through a number of different channels. For 2022/23, an estimated £3.640m
Government funding is available to fund maintenance schemes, supplemented by
£2.943 million of prudential borrowing.

Page 29

LTP Integrated Transport (IT) programme
5. In 2021/22, £1.233 million of LTP funding was received for integrated transport,
supplemented by £7.77 million from other funding sources.
6. Appendix B sets out the integrated transport programme for 2021/22 at year end,
noting any changes from the programme submitted at the beginning of the year,
which schemes have completed, and which have been extended into the current
financial year.
7. At year end, the 2021/22 integrated transport LTP programme came in at
£328.1k under budget. From this underspend, £212.4k will be used as
contribution to fund two large maintenance schemes in the 2022/23 financial year
(Gateshead Viaduct principal inspection and Kyo Bog Lane). The remaining
£115.7k will be carried forward for next year’s integrated transport programme.
8. For 2022/23, £1.197 million is likely to be received for integrated transport. An
additional £35.7k public transport grant is expected to be available through the
North East Combined Authority which would bring the total available funding for
integrated transport to £1.233 million. This will be supplemented by £28.6 million
from external funding sources.
9. External funding sources include a large amount of Transforming Cities Tranche
2 funding (£10.58 million). Transforming Cities funding will be accessed upon
submission and approval of a full business case for each scheme, one of which
has already been submitted and approved (for GA08 Gateshead Quays). Other
sources of funding include funding from Homes England (for the new junction off
Askew Road, west of the town centre), NPIF (for the Sunderland Road Link
scheme), and the North East LEP’s Getting Building Fund (for the Baltic Quarter
Link Road), as well as Early Measures funding and developer contributions
(S106). A significant amount of funding from Tranche 2 of the Active Travel Fund
will also be received this financial year (£417k).
10. The proposed programme for 2022/23 integrated transport schemes is included
as Appendix E. This contains several schemes which have slipped from the
2021/22 financial year. The schemes within this are subject to change as the year
progresses and this will be set out in future updates to Cabinet.
11. Currently the programme is predicted to be over budget by £99.5k, however it is
expected that slippage of schemes in the programme will bring the total expected
spend in line with the budget.

Page 30

LTP Maintenance programme
12. The LTP Maintenance funding allocation for Gateshead in 2022/23 was £3.42
million. Other funding sources included £102k carried over from the previous
financial year, £2.468 million of prudential borrowing, (allocated to traffic signal
improvements, street lighting column replacement, and strategic maintenance
schemes), with £0.25 million of prudential borrowing set aside for the
microasphalt programme. Appendix A sets out the maintenance programme for
2021/22 as it stands at year end.
13. At year end, the 2021/22 maintenance LTP programme came in at £412.6k under
budget. The underspend will be used to fund Gateshead Viaduct principal
inspection (£375k) and Kyo Bog Lane (£250k) in the 2022/23 financial year, with
the shortfall being made up with the 2021/22 integrated transport underspend.
14. For 2022/23, the maintenance allocation from Government is similar to recent
years and includes £1.52 million needs allocation, £1.52 million Pothole funding,
and potentially a higher amount of incentive funding which is yet to be confirmed
(estimated to be £0.6 million). In total, £3.640m is expected to be available to
fund maintenance schemes.
15. A proposed programme for 2022/23 maintenance schemes is included as
Appendix D. The schemes within are subject to change as the year progresses
and this will be set out in future updates to Cabinet.
16. Currently the programme is predicted to be under budget by a significant
amount, although predicted rises in the costs of materials and consultancy work
are very likely to cause an increase this year’s expected spend. Remaining
funding will be allocated where needed throughout the financial year.
Transforming Cities Fund
17. The North East Joint Transport Committee (JTC) secured £103 million from
Tranche 2 of the Transforming Cities Fund in 2019. Five Gateshead schemes
have been identified as priorities for this funding as follows:
 GA01 West Tyneside Cycle Route – a set of relatively small-scale
measures to upgrade cycle routes along the main A1 (Team Valley-Metro
Centre-Blaydon) corridor;
 GA05 Metro Green – a package of measures to improve sustainable
access and support development in the Metro Green area;
 GA08 Hills Street/Gateshead Quays sustainable access – measures to
improve pedestrian and cycle connectivity to Gateshead Quays, especially
pedestrian routes from Gateshead town centre;

Page 31

 GA09 Birtley to Eighton Lodge cycle route improvements - the next step in
improving our major commuter cycle route from Durham/Chester le Street;
 GA16 Gateshead Interchange bus lane - part of the town centre
improvements and related to GA08 above.
18. Funding for these schemes will be confirmed following approval of a full business
case for each scheme by the JTC. The full business case for GA08 Hills Street/
Quays Sustainable Access was submitted and approved in 2021/22, and work
has now commenced. Two further outline business cases have been submitted
for comment thus far (GA01 West Tyneside cycleway and GA09 Birtley to
Eighton Lodge cycleway), with the remaining two outline business cases
expected to follow in the early part of the new financial year. Firmer budgets for
these schemes are being developed as part of the business case process, so
costs are subject to change until the full business case is approved.
19. Consultation on the individual schemes is being undertaken in the normal way as
the detailed designs develop.
20. A regionally based scheme from the Transforming Cities Fund is also under
development to improve the operation of traffic signals along the major bus
corridors including a number in Gateshead. It is expected that the match
contribution towards this scheme will be sourced at a regional level and will not
require an individual contribution from Gateshead.
Future funding bids
Active Travel Fund
21. The North East Joint Transport Committee was awarded £9.049m of funding from
Tranche 2 of the Government’s Emergency Active Travel Fund, with Gateshead
receiving £451k. Consultation has been undertaken through an Experimental
Order associated with these changes, and a decision was made to retain the
measures for an extended period (with a review after two years). These works
are now on site and will complete within the 2022/23 financial year.
Capability Fund
22. The Government announced in 2021 that the Capability Fund would replace the
Access Fund going forward. This revenue grant enables local transport
authorities to promote cycling and walking through the development of
infrastructure plans and behaviour change activities. The North East bid
contained several proposals from Gateshead, one of which was to update the
Council’s Local Cycling & Walking Investment Plan to the latest infrastructure
standards and to extend the LCWIP to the rest of the borough (currently it covers
the Felling/Deckham and Birtley areas). In August 2021 it was confirmed that

Page 32

Gateshead would receive a grant of £283.4k. This will tie into the transport capital
programme, which contains a capital budget to implement the LCWIP proposals.
Bus Service Improvement Plan
23. The Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) for the North East was submitted to
Government last year, outlining an £804 million package of region-wide ambitions
to make buses more attractive, by making them an affordable and practical
alternative to using private cars for more people and helping existing bus users to
travel more frequently. In response to the Plan, Government recently announced
an indicative allocation of £163.5 million for the North East to be spent in the
financial years 2022/23 to 2024/25. The funding is split between £73.8 million of
capital and £90 million of revenue.
24. The Council is currently working with Partners (including Nexus and bus
operators) to finalise the package of schemes that will be delivered through that
funding. A draft Enhanced Partnership Scheme and Plan, setting out the detail of
how the Partners intend to deliver on the ambitions of the BSIP, will be submitted
to DfT in June and consultation on the draft will follow.
Consultation
25. Extensive consultation across the North East was carried out during the
preparation of the North East Transport Plan. This included an eight week public
consultation involving regional authorities, the business community, individuals,
and community organisations. Virtual consultation events were held (equivalent
to local meetings in town and village halls), as well as additional forums with
businesses and other interest groups. The outcome from the consultation has
helped shape the direction of transport strategy in the region.
26. Individual schemes within the programme have and will continue to be subject to
local and stakeholder consultation as appropriate.
27. The Leader, Deputy Leader and Cabinet members for Environment and
Transport were also consulted in the preparation of this report.
Alternative Options
28. No alternative has been considered due to the transport capital programme and
the allocations outlined within it being the only deliverable option to meet regional
policy objectives while supporting more local priorities.

Page 33

Implications of Recommended Option
29. Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and
Digital confirms that there is sufficient allocation within the capital
programme to fund the programme within Appendix D and E to the
report.

b)

Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources
implications.

c)

Property Implications - No property implications have been
identified.

30. Risk Management Implication - The main risk associated with the programme
is that any significant underspend or failure to deliver schemes that have external
funding linked to them may lead to a loss of that funding and jeopardise the
potential to secure additional funding in future years. The development of the
programmes takes into account risks relating to safety, delay and longer-term
issues such as growth, pollution and health in determining priorities.
31. Equality and Diversity Implications - Implementation of the transport capital
programme will assist in reducing social exclusion by improving access for the
young, elderly, unemployed/low waged and people with disabilities. An Integrated
Impact Assessment has been completed for the programme.
32. Crime and Disorder Implications – Proposals within the integrated transport
programme will assist in improving safety and security for the travelling public.
33. Health Implications – The transport capital programme is vital in reducing levels
of casualties in road accidents and also in achieving an Active and Healthy
Gateshead (which aims to make sustainable travel including walking and cycling
more attractive to the residents of Gateshead by improving streets, reducing
traffic, providing training to schools and travel planning). This will also benefit
health by improving air quality.
34. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - The transport capital
programme is an important element in providing the basis for a sustainable
transport system capable of supporting Gateshead’s environmental, social and
economic objectives. It seeks to reduce car dependence and increase active
travel, thereby contributing to the reduction of carbon emissions. A Sustainability
Assessment has been completed for the programme.

Page 34

35. Human Rights Implications - The construction of transport and traffic facilities
can have an effect on the amenities of some residents. Consultation on specific
proposals will be held with residents, ward members and relevant stakeholders.
36. Ward Implications - All wards will be affected.
Background Information
37. Further background information is contained in:
 Report to Cabinet dated December 2021 – LTP Capital Programme
Mid-Year Update
 Report to Cabinet dated April 2021 - Local Transport Plan: Capital
Programme Year End Report
 Report to Cabinet dated March 2022 – Active Travel (Capability Fund)

Page 35

Appendix A – 2021/22 Capital maintenance programme (end of year)

Budget
Funding 21/22

Forecast

Page 36

Budget
1.4.21
£000

Current
Forecast
21/22
£000

167.0
619.0
390.0
239.0
299.0

152.0
1085.0
553.3
396.1
514.0

50.0
1764.0
120.0
135.0

Bridge Maintenance Total
Traffic Signal improvements
Traffic sign replacement
Street lighting column replacement
High speed skid improvement
Other maintenance schemes Total
Flood alleviation total
Road marking renewal/ped guardrail
Vehicle Restraint System renewal
Strategic Patching
Street lighting
Flagged footways

Scheme
Maintenance
Principal Roads Total
Other roads total
Residential roads total
Back Lanes/surface dressing total
Microasphalt Schemes Total
Technical fees/development and
monitoring
Road Maintenance Total
Bridge Maint Principal Roads Total
Bridge Maint Other Roads Total

Spend

S106
£000

Other
Match
Funding
£000

TOTAL
£000

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
250.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

151.9
1084.1
553.1
396.3
514.1

160.0
2610.4
139.0
95.0

0.0
250.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

159.6
2859.0
139.4
95.3

234.0
131.0
115.0
902.0
157.0
1305.0

234.0
13.0
0.0
0.0
157.0
170.0

0.0
118.0
115.0
902.0
0.0
1135.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

234.7
131.4
114.7
902.2
156.8
1305.1

0.0
125.0
125.0
199.0
189.0
333.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
125.0
125.0
199.0
189.0
333.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
125.2
125.0
198.8
189.0
333.0

Prudential
Borrowing
£000

152.0
1085.0
553.3
396.1
264.0

160.0
2860.4
139.0
95.0

255.0
500.0
130.0
1000.0
180.0
1810.0
0.0
125.0
125.0
200.0
100.0
333.0

LTP
£000

Notes

Microasphalt budget partially funded by LTP

Funding slipped to allow Gateshead Viaduct
principal inspection 22/23

Flood alleviation programme was delayed
into subsequent years

Footways
Strategic Maintenance Total

200.0
1083.0

207.0
1178.0

95.0
95.0

112.0
1083.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

206.7
1177.7

Total Maintenance

4912.0

5577.4

3109.4

2468.0

0.0

0.0

5576.5

Page 37

Appendix B – 2021/22 Integrated transport capital programme (end of year)
Budget
Forecast

Funding 21/22

Budget
1.4.21
£000

Current
Forecast
21/22
£000

Traffic Management
Public Rights of Way

250.0
80.0

288.9
96.6

Car park improvements
Modelling and Investigation
Ongoing Commitments Total
S of Team Valley bridge
Pedestrian/Cycle Bridge; Preliminary
Design

10.0
40.0
380.0

Spend

Prudential
Borrowing
£000

S106
£000

Other
Match
Funding
£000

288.9
96.6

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

288.9
96.6

0.0
40.1
425.6

0.0
40.1
425.6

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
40.1
425.6

12.7

1.4

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

A695 Greenside Road roundabout
Blaydon Pedestrian/Cycle Bridge;
Preliminary Design

10.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

11.9

2.9

2.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.9

Springwell Road junction improvement

15.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Glossop Street / High Spen developer
improvements

6.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

20.0
7.8
83.6
245.4

12.9
7.8
25.0
499.2

12.9
0.0
17.2
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
7.8
7.8
499.2

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

12.9
7.8
25.0
499.2

24.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Scheme
Integrated Transport

Page 38

VMS study
Quays signal and lighting design
Scheme development total
Beweshill Lane roundabout
VMS town centre

LTP
£000

TOTAL
£000

Notes
Small scale traffic management
schemes (ward issues)
Improvements to PRoW network
Improvements to Council operated car
parks
Transport modelling and investigations.

Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Design checking and scheme
preparation to take place 22/23
Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Junction with Leam Lane modelling and
design to complete 22/23
Design only for developer works.
Remaining funding slipped to 22/23 to
proceed with construction
Study into the future signing needs for
the Quays.

Completed 21/22
Removed from the programme as all
achievable works completed

A695 - Stargate Lane roundabout

Page 39

Coatsworth Road
Baltic Business Quarter Link Rd/junction
Durham Road (Low Fell)
Quays Sustainable Transport
Improvements
Askew Road - junction/Bridge removal
Economic Development &
Regeneration Total
20 mph Schemes
Winlaton
Watermill
Dunston 20MPH
Lyndhurst
Rowlands Gill
Shibdon Road 20mph zone

Village entry treatments
Pinewoods 40mph Zone
Covid 19 - walking/cycling/social
distancing
Safe and Sustainable Communities
Total
NCN725 (Camborne Place road closure
and Dryden Road shops)
A195 Lingey Lane cycleway
Sunderland Road Link
Clean Vehicle Technology Fund
Bus shelter improvements
Saltmeadows Road (bus stop)

564.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

205.0
7086.1
20.0

3.8
5275.5
58.3

3.8
0.0
58.3

0.0
784.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
4491.5
0.0

3.8
5275.5
58.3

2706.0
1482.1

0.0
957.6

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
957.6

0.0
957.6

12332.8

6794.4

62.1

784.0

499.2

5449.1

6794.4

84.1
0.0
120.3
65.0
10.4
50.0

127.8
15.7
14.7
0.0
0.0
0.0

127.8
15.7
14.7
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

127.8
15.7
14.7
0.0
0.0
0.0

25.0
15.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

83.6

83.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

83.6

369.8

246.9

246.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

241.9

28.0
48.5
1380.6
0.0
10.0
9.7

0.3
5.7
520.2
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.3
5.7
520.2
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.3
5.7
520.2
0.0
0.0
0.0

Design ongoing to construct 22/23
Much larger budget required to fund
meaningful works. Scheme removed
from programme but retained within long
term pipeline
On site
Scheme redundant due to overlap with
TCF funded works
Homes England funding

Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Removed from the programme
Upgrade of village entry treatments to
promote lower speeds. Reallocated to
20mph zones as current provision of
village entry measures was found to be
sufficient
Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Costs associated with temporary Covid
19 measures

Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
Completed 21/22
To complete early 22/23

Remaining funding slipped to 22/23

Felling and Deckham pedestrian/cycle
improvements - LCWIP
Birtley pedestrian/cycle improvements LCWIP
OLEV Taxi Programme - change TRO

Walking and cycling improvement works
identified through LCWIP. Minimal spend
expected until LCWIP updated to new
government standards

Page 40

200.0

4.9

4.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.9

200.0
2.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

50.2
331.0

0.0
10.2

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
10.2

0.0
10.2

See above
Remaining funding slipped to 22/23
To be completed as part of regionwide
ITS works
Air quality grant from Government

451.0
32.5
160.0

34.2
134.5
8.4

0.0
134.5
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

34.2
0.0
8.4

34.2
134.5
8.4

On site
Study completed
National Highways Designated Funds

160.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

National Highways Designated Funds

20.0
3083.5

0.0
745.8

0.0
152.8

0.0
14.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
579.0

0.0
718.4

National Highways Designated Funds

824.5

32.1

0.0

32.1

0.0

0.0

32.1

Metro Green Phase 1
NCN725 (full scheme Low Fell to
Durham boundary)

1720.2

17.5

0.0

17.5

0.0

0.0

17.5

1717.6

256.6

0.0

256.6

0.0

0.0

256.6

Gateshead Quays Sustainable access

1546.1

125.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

125.6

125.6

382.5
6190.9
22440.6

8.3
440.1
8677.8

0.0
0.0
904.7

0.0
306.2
1104.2

0.0
0.0
506.9

8.3
133.9
6162.0

8.3
440.1
8645.4

Wrekenton Town Centre junction
Town centre AQ works
Tranche 2 Emergency Active Travel
Fund
Bensham Road / Charles Street
NH Designated Funds - Coalhouse J66
NH Designated Funds - Eighton Lodge
J67
NH Designated Funds - Long Bank
bridleway
Climate Change Total
West Tyneside Cycle route

Gateshead Interchange bus lane
TCF schemes total
Total Integrated Transport

TCF
2023
TCF
2023
TCF
2023
TCF
2023
TCF
2023

works to complete by end of March
works to complete by end of March
works to complete by end of March
works to complete by end of March
works to complete by end of March

Appendix C - 2021/22 funding sources (end of year)
Resources

21/22 Integrated
Transport LTP

000's Outturn

904.7

21/22 Maintenance LTP
S106 Developer
contributions

3109.4

Early measures funding
NPIF

0.3
520.0

Prudential Borrowing
Flood Levy/Grant in aid
Air quality grant
Transforming Cities Fund
(Tranche 1)
Transforming Cities Fund
(Tranche 2)
Homes England
(Emergency) Active
Travel Fund
Getting Building Fund
(LEP)
National Highways
Designated Funding
Total Funding

Comments
IT budget £1197.1k plus £35.7k public
transport grant
£212.4k contribution to fund large
maintenance schemes next financial year
(as below). £115.7k remaining to carry
-328.1 forward.
£1520k LTP, £1520k Pothole Fund and
£380k Incentive funding. Plus carryover from
previous financial year of £102k.
Carry forward £412.6k contribution to
Gateshead Viaduct inspection (est. £375k)
and Kyo Bog Lane (est. £250k).
-412.6

506.9

NCN725 Phase 3 Camborne Place
Sunderland Road

3572.2
10.2
5.7

Lingey Lane cycleway (now complete)

133.9
957.6

To be claimed next financial year
Askew Road

34.2
4491.5

Baltic Business Quarter link road

8.4
14,255

Page 41
15 of 19

Appendix D – 2022/23 Capital maintenance programme

Page 42

Scheme
Maintenance
Principal Roads Total
Other roads total
Residential roads total
Back Lanes/surface dressing total
Microasphalt Schemes Total
Technical fees/development and monitoring
Road Maintenance Total

Forecast
Current
Budget Forecast
1.4.22
22/23
£000
£000

Budget
Funding 22/23

LTP
£000

Spend

Prudential
Borrowing
£000

S106
£000

Other
Match
Funding
£000

TOTAL
£000

259
798
453
620
252
50
2,432

264
754
449
563
218
50
2,298

264
754
449
563
0
50
2,080

0
0
0
0
218
0
218

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Bridge Maint Principal Roads Total
Bridge Maint Other Roads Total
Bridge Maintenance Total
Traffic Signal improvements
Traffic sign replacement
Street lighting column replacement
Other maintenance schemes Total

521
235
756
332
150
1175
1,657

921
223
1144
332
150
1175
1,657

921
223
1144
0
0
125
125

0
0
0
332
150
1050
1,532

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
1
1.4
0
0
0
0

Flood alleviation total
Road marking renewal/ped guardrail
Vehicle Restraint System renewal
Strategic Patching
Street lighting
Flagged footways
Footways
Strategic Maintenance Total

0
125
125
200
100
333
200
1,083

0
125
125
200
210
333
200
1,193

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
125
125
200
210
333
200
1,193

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1

Total Maintenance

5,928

6,292

3,349

2,943

0

0

2

16 of 19

Notes

Includes £375k carry over for Gateshead
Viaduct

Flood alleviation programme will be
minimal this year

Appendix E – 2022/23 Integrated transport capital programme
Forecast

Scheme
Integrated Transport

Funding 22/23
Current
Forecast
22/23
£000

Budget
1.4.22
£000

LTP
£000

Prudential
Borrowing
£000

S106
£000

Other
Match
Funding
£000

Notes

Page 43

Small scale traffic management schemes
(ward issues)
Improvements to PRoW network
Improvements to Council operated car
parks
Transport modelling and investigations.

Traffic Management
Public Rights of Way

250
80

250
80

250
80

0
0

0
0

0
0

Car park improvements
Modelling and Investigation
Ongoing Commitments Total
S of Team Valley bridge Pedestrian/Cycle
Bridge; Preliminary Design
A695 Greenside Road roundabout
Blaydon Pedestrian/Cycle Bridge; Preliminary
Design

10
40
380

10
40
380

10
40
380

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

12
10

12
10

12
10

0
0

0
0

0
0

Slipped from 21/22
Design checking and scheme preparation

9

9

9

0

0

0

Slipped from 21/22

A694 corridor improvements
Derwent cycle route improvements
Quays signal and lighting design
Scheme development total
A695 - Stargate Lane roundabout
Baltic Business Quarter Link Rd/junction
Durham Road (Low Fell)
Askew Road - junction/Bridge removal
Economic Development & Regeneration
Total
20 mph Schemes
Winlaton
Dunston 20MPH
Lyndhurst

40

40

40

0

0

0

30
241
342
523
7426.144
20
2000

30
241
342
523
7426.144
20
2000

30
0
101
0
0
20
0

0
241
241
0
7401.144
0
1800

0
0
0
523
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
25
0
200

9,969

9,969

20

9,201

523

225

20
120
15

20
332
15

20
332
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
15

17 of 19

Junction improvements on the A694.
S106 funding secured for part of the
works
Linked to Chopwell/Highfield/ High Spen
housing development.
Budget TBC
Slipped from 21/22
Slipped from 21/22
Homes England funding

Slipped from 21/22

Lyndhurst (large scheme)
Rowlands Gill

Page 44

Byermoor
Pinewoods 40mph Zone
Safe and Sustainable Communities Total
NCN725 (Camborne Place road closure and
Dryden Road shops)
Sunderland Road Link
Clean Vehicle Technology Fund
Bus shelter improvements
Saltmeadows Road (bus stop)
LCWIP work
Wrekenton Town Centre junction
Town centre AQ works
Bensham Road / Charles Street
NH Designated Funds - Coalhouse J66
NH Designated Funds - Eighton Lodge J67
NH Designated Funds - Long Bank bridleway
Springwell Road junction improvement
Bensham Road Cuthbert Street junction
Bus Service Improvement Plan (schemes TBC)
Tanfield / Pennyfine Road lighting
Tranche 2 Emergency Active Travel Fund
Glossop Street / High Spen developer
improvements
Climate Change Total
West Tyneside Cycle route
Metro Green Phase 1
NCN725 (full scheme Low Fell to Durham
boundary)
Gateshead Quays Sustainable access
Gateshead Interchange bus lane
TCF schemes total
Total Integrated Transport

50
10

50
10

50
10

0
0

0
0

0
0

50
19
284

50
19
496

50
9
471

0
0
0

0
10
10

0
0
15

28
61
0
10
10
200
50
321
1,015
160
160
20
150
60
0
20
417

28
61
0
10
10
200
50
321
1,015
160
160
20
150
60
0
20
417

0
0
0
10
0
200
0
0
0
0
0
0
150
60
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,015
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
10
0
50
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
20
0

28
61
0
0
0
0
0
321
0
160
160
20
0
0
0
0
417

55.8
2,737
2,276
4,918

55.8
2,737
2,294
4,920

55.8
476
0
0

0
1,015
534
1,095

0
80
0
0

0
1,167
1,760
3,825

3,307
2,290
282
13,073
26,786

3,350
2,290
279
13,133
27,057

0
0
0
0
1,448

467
0
0
2,096
12,553

0
454
0
454
1,066

2,883
1,836
279
10,583
11,990

18 of 19

Budget subject to consultation with
members
Slipped from 21/22

Slipped from 21/22

Slipped from 21/22

Air quality grant from Government

Individual schemes to be confirmed

Appendix F - 2022/23 expected funding sources
Resources

22/23 Integrated
Transport LTP

000's Outturn

Comments
IT budget £1197.1k plus £35.7k public
transport grant and £115.7k carryover from
21/22.

1448

99.5

22/23 Maintenance LTP
S106 Developer
contributions

3349

£1520k LTP, £1520k Pothole Fund and
estimated £600k Incentive funding. Plus
carryover from previous financial year of
£625k for Gateshead Viaduct inspection and
-916 Kyo Bog Lane.

Early measures funding
NPIF

28
61

Prudential Borrowing
Air quality grant
Transforming Cities Fund
(Tranche 2)
(Emergency) Active
Travel Fund
Getting Building Fund
(LEP)
National Highways
Designated Funding
Homes England
Lyndhurst revenue
funding
Total Funding

1066

NCN725 Phase 3 Camborne Place
Sunderland Road

15496
321
10583
417
25

Baltic Business Quarter link road

340
200

Askew Road junction scheme

15
33,349

Page 45
19 of 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
REPORT TO CABINET
24 May 2022

TITLE OF REPORT:

Appointments to Advisory Groups, Other Bodies of the
Council, Joint Committees and Outside Bodies

REPORT OF:

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

Purpose of the Report
1.

The report sets out the nominations of the Labour and Liberal Democrat Groups to
advisory groups, other bodies of the Council, joint committees and outside bodies.
The report asks the Cabinet to consider the nominations.
Background

2.

At the beginning of each municipal year, it is the practice to appoint councillors to
various decision making bodies, partnerships, joint committees, outside bodies and
youth and community organisations. The Council is responsible for making
appointments to non-executive bodies such as the planning and development,
licensing, regulatory and appeals committees and makes these appointments at the
annual meeting.

3.

In line with the constitution, the Cabinet has responsibility for all executive functions
of the Council and therefore makes appointments to the advisory groups of the
Cabinet and all other bodies of the Council which have executive functions.
Proposal

4.

The Cabinet is asked to consider the nominations of the Labour and Liberal
Democrat Groups.
Recommendation
It is recommended that the Cabinet agrees the nominations of the Labour and
Liberal Democrat Groups.
For the following reasons:
(i)

To ensure that the views of the political groups are taken into account when
the appointments are made.

(ii)

To ensure that the most appropriate councillors are appointed to each body.

CONTACT: Mike Aynsley

Extension: 2128

Page 47
1

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The Council’s constitution sets out the responsibility of the Cabinet for executive
functions. The Cabinet is responsible for appointing members to advisory groups of
the Cabinet, partnerships, other bodies of the Council, joint committees and
authorities, outside bodies and youth and community organisations.
Background

2.

Annual appointments are made to bodies which work with and for the benefit of the
Borough’s residents.
Consultation

3.

Gateshead Council’s Labour and Liberal Democrat Groups considered their
nominations to the bodies to be appointed by the Cabinet.
Alternative Options

4.

If the Council wishes to continue to be represented on the bodies listed in the
attached appendices, then there are no viable alternative options.
Implications of Recommended Option

5.

Resources:
a.
Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Corporate Resources
confirms that there are no financial implications arising from the
recommended option.
b.

Human Resources Implications - There are no human resources
implications.

c.

Property Implications –There are no property implications

6.

Risk Management Implication - There are no risk management implications
arising from the recommended option.

7.

Equality and Diversity Implications - Equality and diversity implications have
been considered by the Groups in making their nominations.

8.

Crime and Disorder Implications - There are no crime and disorder implications
arising from the recommended option.

9.

Health Implications - There are no health implications arising from the
recommended option.

10.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - There are no climate
emergency or sustainability implications arising from the recommended option.

Page 48
2

11.

Human Rights Implications - There are no human rights implications arising form
the recommended option.

12.

Ward Implications – The Council makes appointments to bodies which are based
in all wards of the Borough thereby ensuring that the Council has an input into local
groups as well as Borough wide organisations.
Background Information

13.

All background papers relating to appointments are available on file ref LCS-DLDSDS-A-006.

Page 49
3

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

LABOUR GROUP NOMINATIONS TO COUNCIL AND OTHER BODIES FOR THE
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23

ADVISORY GROUPS OF THE CABINET
Corporate Advisory Group
All Council Members (Councillor Gannon - Chair)
Policy Advisory Group
All Council Members (Chair appointed by the Leader dependent on topic)
Gateshead Fund (Capacity Building Fund)
Councillors

B Clelland
C Donovan
J Eagle
L Green
L Kirton (Chair)
R Waugh

Councillor Support and Development Group
Councillors

L Caffrey
C Donovan (Chair)
M Gannon (Vice Chair)
G Haley
H Haran
H Kelly
R Mullen
J Reay
D Robson
R Waugh
K Wood
Vacancy

PARTNERSHIPS
Children’s Centres Advisory Board
Councillor

M Brain
B Clelland
G Haley
B Goldsworthy
P McNally

Page 51

Diversity Forum
Councillors

J Eagle
B Goldsworthy
L Green
J McCoid

East Gateshead Bus Stakeholder Board
Councillors

L Green
S Green
R Waugh

Substitutes: J Turnbull
Vacancy
Local Bus Board for Gateshead
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport
Councillors

L Caffrey
T Graham
J Green
R Waugh

Gateshead and Newcastle Partnership
Councillors

K Dodds
C Donovan
M Gannon
M Goldsworthy
L Green

Substitutes: J Adams
R Waugh
Vacancy
Gateshead Community Safety Board
Councillor

A Douglas

Gateshead Strategic Partnership
Councillors

M Gannon

Substitute:

C Donovan

Land of Oak and Iron Partnership Board
Councillor

J McElroy

Page 52

Public Sector PLC Limited Liability
Councillor

J Adams
M Brain
C Donovan

South of Tyne and Wear Waste Management Partnership Joint Committee
Councillors

A Douglas
L Green

Substitute:

C Donovan

OTHER BODIES OF THE COUNCIL
Blaydon Quarry Liaison Committee
Councillors

M Brain
C Buckley
M Hall
H Kelly

Corporate Parenting Board
Cabinet member for Children and Young People
Councillors

A Douglas
S Gallagher
F Geddes
H Weatherley

Fostering Panel
Councillors

G Haley
M McNestry

Gateshead Schools Forum
Councillor

S Gallagher

Substitute:

R Waugh

Learning Skills Steering Group
Councillors

J Adams
D Burnett

Path Head Quarry Liaison Group
Councillors

M Brain
C Buckley

Page 53

M Hall
H Kelly
Private Sector Housing Renewal Financial Assistance Panel
Councillors

W Dick
M Brain

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education
Councillors

F Geddes
T Graham
J McElroy
P McNally

JOINT COMMITTEES AND JOINT AUTHORITIES
Beamish Museum Board
Councillor

A Douglas

Gateshead & Newcastle Joint Bridges Committee
Councillors

B Clelland
J Eagle
J McElroy

Mountsett Crematorium Committee
Councillors

D Bradford
K Dodds
L Green
S Green
2 vacancies

North East Health Scrutiny Joint Committee
Councillor

S Green

Substitute

Vacancy

North East Procurement Organisation – Collaborative Sub-Committee
Councillor

J Eagle

Tyne & Wear Archives and Museums Strategic Board
Councillor

A Douglas

Page 54

Tyne & Wear Fire & Rescue Authority
Councillors

K Dodds
G Haley

Tyne & Wear Trading Standards Joint Committee
Councillors

C Buckley
K Dodds
T Graham

Substitutes

D Bradford
J McElroy

OUTSIDE BODIES
Association of Directors of Children’s Services
Councillors

G Haley
M McNestry
K Wood

Baltic Flour Mills Visual Arts Trust
Councillors

C Donovan
R Mullen

Council of Governors of Gateshead Health NHS Trust
Councillor

B Oliphant

Equal Arts Board of Management
Councillor

A Douglas

Gateshead Citizens Advice Bureau
Councillor

S Dickie
J Gibson

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust
Councillor

M Gannon

Keelman Homes
Councillors

J Adams

Page 55

Newcastle International Airport Local Authority Holding Company
Councillor

M Gannon

Substitute

C Donovan

North East Contracting Consortium for Asylum Support
Councillor

M McNestry

North Regional Association for Sensory Support
Councillors

L Caffrey
M McNestry

Northern Information Technology Research Limited
Councillor

J Adams

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust of Governors
Councillor

M Hall

Northumbria Regional Flood Defence Committee
Councillor

J McElroy

Substitute

J Adams

Tyne and Wear Housing Partnership
Councillor

M Brain

Tyne and Wear Local Access Forum
Councillor

K Wood

Tyne Port Health Authority
Councillors

W Dick
K Dodds
T Graham

OTHER OUTSIDE BODIES
Association of Public Service Excellence
Councillor

J Simpson

Substitute

S Green

Page 56

Bus Lane Adjudication Service Joint Committee
Councillor

J Eagle

Elgin Centre Partnership
Councillors

M Gannon
L Kirton

Gateshead and South Tyneside Sight Service
Councillor

A Geddes

Gateshead Borough Churches Together Combined Furniture and Gardening Project
Councillor

E McMaster

National Parking Adjudication Service Joint Committee
Councillor

J McElroy

Substitute:

J Adams

Newcastle International Airport Consultative Committee
Councillor

A Geddes

Northern Regional Brass Band Trust
Councillor

J McElroy

Pickering Trust
Councillor

M Gannon

Ryton Parochial Charity Trust/Lawson Educational Foundation
Councillor

A Geddes

SCAPE Systems Build Limited
Councillor

M Brain

Substitute

H Kelly

The Trustees of Thomas Powell Almshouses and Gateshead Parochial Charities
Councillors

S Green
J Green
M McNestry
Vacancy

Page 57

Tyneside and District Anti-Fascist Organisation
Councillor

H Kelly

YOUTH AND COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS
Bensham Grove Community Association
Councillors

K Dodds
C Donovan

Birtley Community Association
Councillors

C Davison
Vacancy

Blackhall Mill Community Association
Councillor

L Caffrey

Blaydon Youth Club
Councillors

M Brain
M Hall

Chopwell Community Association
Councillors

D Bradford
L Caffrey
M McNestry

Chowdene/Cleveland Hall Boys’ Club
Councillors

M Goldsworthy
J McElroy

Felling Community Association
Councillors

S Dickie
P McNally

Gateshead Youth Council
Councillors

W Dick
J Reay

Gateshead Redheugh Community Club
Councillor

D Burnett

Page 58

Gateshead Young Women’s Outreach Project
Councillors

B Clelland
L Kirton

Greenside Community Association
Councillors

H Haran
H Kelly

Harlow Green Community Group
Councillors

M Goldsworthy

Kibblesworth Village Centre
Councillors

2 vacancies

Leam Lane Community Association
Councillors

L Green
Vacancy

Mount Community Association
Councillors

2 vacancies

Pelaw Youth Centre
Councillors

B Dick
P McNally

Rowlands Gill Community Association
Councillors

D Bradford
L Caffrey

Ryton Community Association
Councillor

C Buckley
A Geddes

The Sound Room Project
Councillors

C Donovan
E McMaster

St Chad’s Community Project
Councillor

J Adams

Page 59

Springwell Community Association
Councillors

J Green
J Reay

Streets Ahead Youth Project
Councillors

W Dick
A Douglas

WinG Management Committee
Councillors

W Dick
K Wood

Winlaton Centre Community Association
Councillor

P Burns
J Simpson

Page 60

APPENDIX 3
LIBERAL DEMOCRAT GROUP NOMINATIONS TO COUNCIL AND OTHER BODIES
FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23
ADVISORY GROUPS OF THE CABINET
Corporate Advisory Group
All Council Members
Policy Advisory Group
All Council Members
Gateshead Fund (Capacity Building Fund)
Councillor

I Patterson

Councillor Support and Development Group
Councillors

D Duggan
J Mohammed
M Ord

PARTNERSHIPS
Gateshead and Newcastle Partnership
Councillor

J Wallace

Substitutes: R Beadle
JOINT COMMITTEES AND JOINT AUTHORITIES
Gateshead & Newcastle Joint Bridges Committee
Councillor

A Wintcher

Mountsett Crematorium Committee
Councillor

M Ord

Tyne & Wear Fire & Rescue Authority
Councillor

C Ord

Tyne & Wear Trading Standards Joint Committee
Councillor

I Patterson

Substitute

S Hawkins

Page 61

OTHER BODIES OF THE COUNCIL
Corporate Parenting Board
Councillors

I Patterson

Page 62

Agenda Item 6
REPORT TO CABINET
24 May 2022

TITLE OF REPORT: Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme (RSAP) Funding
2022-25
REPORT OF:

Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Housing, Environment
and Healthy Communities

Purpose of the Report
1.

To note a decision taken under delegated powers, to submit the Rough Sleeping
Accommodation Programme (RSAP) funding bid, for period 2022-2025, on the
grounds of urgency, due to bid submission timescales.

Background
2.

The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) invited
Councils, working closely with delivery partners, to submit proposals and bids for
2022-25 for the Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme (RSAP).

3.

Gateshead has not applied for previous rounds of RSAP funding and was
encouraged by DLUHC to submit a bid in this round. We opted to identify an
external delivery partner to work with us to deliver homes for rough sleepers and
those at risk of sleeping rough. A briefing was circulated to our housing partners in
March outlining our requirements and inviting expressions of interest by a specified
date.

4.

Four partners submitted an expression of interest, and all were invited to separate
meetings with council representatives, facilitated by DLUHC and Homes England
(HE), to explain their proposals in more detail and answer any questions.

5.

Tyne Housing Association, a registered provider of housing, met all the
requirements and were selected as our delivery partner. Tyne Housing have been
working with vulnerable people in the north-east region for just under 50 years and
have worked with this client group in Gateshead for many years. They have also
successfully bid for RSAP funding in recent years in partnership with North
Tyneside and Newcastle local authorities.

6.

The bid submission process involved co-production meetings with DLUHC, HE and
Tyne Housing. Tyne Housing were required to submit their funding ‘proposal’ via
the Homes England Information Management System (IMS). The Council were
required to complete a ‘bid’ form, created by DLUHC. HE and DLUHC worked
together to ensure consistent information was provided. The deadline for
submission of both documents was 13 April 2022.

Page 63
1 of 6

Proposal
7.

The bid proposes that Tyne Housing purchase on the open market seven one or
two bed properties in Gateshead to be refurbished and ready for clients to move
into by April 2023. Tyne Housing will be the landlord of the properties and all client
referrals will come from the Council’s Housing Solutions service. Clients will have
multiple and complex needs including rough sleeping or being at risk of sleeping
rough in addition to two or more needs including the following - mental health,
substance misuse, offending history and domestic abuse. Other features of the bid
include:


Staffing – All seven properties will be supported by one FTE support worker
who will provide intensive, wrap around support. The worker will be in post
eight weeks prior to the clients moving in to ensure a smooth transition and
development of an early rapport. Holistic, intensive support will be provided
throughout the tenancy with all aspects of daily living. Promoting confidence
will be a key aspect of the support and working towards a greater level of
independence in areas such as housing and employment ensuring clients
are ready to transition to a more independent living arrangement after two
(maximum three) years living at the property. Tyne Housing already have an
RSAP team in place due to successful bids with other local authorities
therefore providing additional resilience and learning opportunities for staff.



Properties – Subject to availability and price, ideally one bedroomed
properties will be purchased on the open market reflecting the needs of this
client group who are usually singles. Some two bedroomed properties may
be considered if there are a lack of one bedroomed properties available.
Homes will be dispersed but located nearby to one another to enable the
staff member to move easily between them. Properties will be close to local
amenities and have good transport links. Properties will be refurbished and
decorated to a good standard to engender a feeling of pride in the property
from the client. Tenancies will run for two, maximum three years and will be
assured shorthold tenancies.



Funding – Tyne Housing are applying for both capital and revenue funding
as part of their proposal:



Capital funding for 49% of expected purchase price of the seven
properties (£288,500) the other 51% will be funded by Tyne Housing.
Revenue funding of £116,579 for staffing costs.

8.

All costs attributable to Tyne Housing have already received sign off by their Board.
Capital funding will be paid directly to Tyne Housing from Homes England.
Revenue funding will be paid to the Council by DLUHC then transferred to Tyne
Housing who will manage the staff member. The total amount of funding applied
over the three-year period is £405,079.

9.

The bid has been submitted and DLUHC and HE have confirmed that
announcements regarding funding are likely to be made in June 2022.

Page 64
2 of 6

Recommendations
10.

It is recommended that Cabinet notes that a bid has been submitted as described
in the report and agreed by the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital and
Strategic Director, Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities as an urgent
delegated decision in accordance with Schedule 5, Part 2 General Delegations to
Managers, Paragraph (4) (e) of the Council’s Constitution.
For the following reason:
To maximise the funding opportunities to support the delivery of the Homelessness
and Rough Sleeping Strategy.

CONTACT: Amy Davies, Housing Strategy and Partnerships Officer
email: amydavies@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 65
3 of 6

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The proposals support the overall vision for Gateshead as set out in Making
Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives and directly relate to the following
pledges:





Put people and families at the heart of everything we do
Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance
Support our communities to help themselves and each other
Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead

2.

The Housing Strategy 2019-2030 identifies a vision for housing in Gateshead,
centred on three strategic themes - supply, standards, and support. The Rough
Sleeping Accommodation Programme directly links to the support theme and its
main objectives to tackle homelessness and its route causes and promote tenancy
sustainment and wellbeing.

3.

The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping strategy sets out a clear vision to prevent
and end homelessness in all forms in Gateshead over the next five years. The
interventions which will be supported by the Rough Sleeping Accommodation
Programme bid are key to the strategic aims set out in the strategy, in particular the
aim for no-one to be sleeping rough or in unsuitable accommodation.

4.

Further, improving access to accommodation and support for Rough Sleepers
underpins many of the aims set out in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, most
notably:





Enable all children, young people, and adults to maximise their capabilities
and have control over their lives
Ensure a healthy standard of living for all, in accordance with international
law on economic and social rights
Create and develop sustainable communities
Strengthen the role and impact of ill health prevention.

Background
5.

The RSAP programme was first announced in 2020 and aims to support up to
6,000 rough sleepers into longer term accommodation over the course of this
parliament. RSAP’s objective is to provide move-on homes which will be available
as long-term assets with accompanying support services for rough sleepers. A total
of £435 million has been allocated nationally to realise this vision.

6.

RSAP bids must also have clear synergy with applications for Rough Sleeper
Initiative (RSI) funding and demonstrate how the two funding sources will
compliment each other. Gateshead submitted a bid for RSI funding to DLUHC in
February 2022. The outcome of that bid is unknown at the time of writing this
report.

Page 66
4 of 6

7.

In preparation for the RSI bid in February 2022, an extensive self-assessment was
undertaken to understand our strengths and gaps in service provision for the rough
sleeper client group. The self-assessment involved consultation with partner
agencies and those with lived experience and a full analysis of the data we report
both internally and to government on rough sleepers in Gateshead. This enabled
development of a clear understanding of the gaps in accommodation and support
in the borough and evidence of need and demand but also for this RSAP bid
including:
a. A high percentage of rough sleepers or those at risk of rough sleeping are
being placed in emergency and hostel accommodation
b. Of those placed in emergency accommodation, a large percentage of
rough sleepers have multiple and complex needs
c. We work with a target group of 23 rough sleepers on a regular and ongoing basis
d. We have a gap in provision of longer-term, move-on accommodation in
existing council stock for this client group

8.

The bid addresses current gaps in rough sleeper accommodation and if successful
will provide:
 Seven long term, dedicated properties for the rough sleeper client group
which can be re-let every 2-3 years when individuals are ready to move into
more permanent accommodation
 Wrap-around, intensive support for clients with multiple and complex needs
via a dedicated RSAP support worker
 Referrals to the properties directly from the Council’s Housing Solutions team

9.

The RSAP bid will also support the objectives of several inter-dependent reviews
which the Council is currently undertaking including the Homelessness and
Allocations, Anti-Social Behaviour and Multi-Storey reviews. If successful, it is
hoped that the RSAP bid will create long term, sustainable accommodation and
support and reduce the potential for negative impacts in communities from this
client group.

Consultation
10.

The Cabinet Members for Housing have been consulted and indicated their support
for the bid. Key internal and external stakeholders were consulted in the
development of the bid.

Alternative Options
11.

An alternative option would have been to not submit a bid, but this would not
maximise the funding opportunities available to the Council.

Page 67
5 of 6

Implications of Recommended Option
12.

13.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms that the financial implications are as detailed in the report.

b)

Human Resources Implications – None

c)

Property Implications - None

Risk Management Implication
Risk to service delivery if bid unsuccessful/partially funded.

14.

Equality and Diversity Implications
Bid would create additional accommodation for rough sleepers which are an underserved group.

15.

Crime and Disorder Implications – None

16.

Health Implications
Supporting this client group will have a positive impact on health and wellbeing by
enabling access to suitable accommodation and support services.

17.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - None

18.

Human Rights Implications - None

19.

Ward Implications - None

Page 68
6 of 6

Agenda Item 7
REPORT TO CABINET
24 May 2022

TITLE OF REPORT:

Nomination of Local Authority School Governors

REPORT OF:

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive

Purpose of the Report
1.

Cabinet is asked to nominate local authority governors to schools seeking to retain
their local authority governor in accordance with The School Governance
(Constitution) (England) Regulations.

Background
2.

The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations require all governing
bodies to adopt a model for their size and membership. The regulations prescribe
which categories of governor must be represented and what the level of
representation is for each. The local authority’s nomination is subject to the
approval of the governing body. If approved, the nominee is appointed by the
governing body.

Proposal
3.

It is proposed that Cabinet approves the nominations to schools as shown in
appendix 1.

Recommendations
4.

It is recommended that Cabinet:
(i)

approves the nominations for appointment/reappointment of local authority
governors;

(ii)

notes the term of office as determined by the schools’ Instrument of
Government.

For the following reason:
To ensure the School Governing Bodies have full membership.

CONTACT: John Finch

extension: 8626 (Johnfinch@gateshead.gov.uk)

Page 69
1 of 3

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

In accordance with The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations,
local authorities can nominate any eligible person as a local authority governor.
Statutory guidance encourages local authorities to appoint high calibre governors
with skills appropriate to the school’s governance needs, who will uphold the
school’s ethos, and to nominate candidates irrespective of political affiliation or
preferences. A person is disqualified as a local authority governor if they are
eligible to be a staff governor at the same school.
Consultation

2.

The Cabinet Member for Children and Young People has been consulted.
Alternative Options

3.

The alternative option would be to make no nomination/appointment to the
vacancies, leaving governing bodies under strength and less likely to demonstrate
the correct configuration.
Implications of Recommended Option

4.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director Resources and Digital
confirms there are no financial implications arising from this report.

b)

Human Resources Implications – None

c)

Property Implications - None

5.

Risk Management Implication - None

6.

Equality and Diversity Implications - None

7.

Crime and Disorder Implications – None

8.

Health Implications - None

9.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - None

10.

Human Rights Implications - None

11.

Area and Ward Implications - None
Background Information

12.

The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations.

Page 70
2 of 3

In accordance with the School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations
2012, the following local authority governors are nominated for a period of four years
(as stipulated in the individual Instruments of Government) with effect from the dates
stated below:
School
Crookhill Community Primary School
Larkspur Community Primary School
Blaydon West Primary School
Eslington Primary School

Nomination
Cllr Freda Geddes
Cllr Judith Gibson
Cllr Lee-Ann Moir
Cllr Angela Douglas

Date from
6th November 2022
8th November 2022
22nd June 2022
8th June 2022

Notes:




Cllr Freda Geddes and Cllr Judith Gibson are reappointments and are supported by
the Chair/Headteacher.
Cllr Lee-Ann Moir is a new nomination from Labour Group and was until recently LA
governor at St Mary’s RC Primary School.
Cllr Angela Douglas is a new nomination and was until recently LA governor at
Eslington & Furrowfield Federation (the governing body has agreed to de-federate
and Cllr Douglas is being put forward for the new governing body at Eslington
Primary School).

Page 71
3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Bythe
of
virtue
Local
of paragraph(s)
Government Act
1 of1972.
Part 1 of Schedule 12A

Document is Restricted

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Bythe
of
virtue
Local
of paragraph(s)
Government Act
1 of1972.
Part 1 of Schedule 12A

Document is Restricted

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

